
 
 
 
OUR MISSION IS TO PROVIDE EXCEPTIONAL PUBLIC SERVICES THAT  

                                                 ENHANCE THE EXPERIENCE OF LIVING, WORKING AND VISITING ADA. 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

A Copy of the above information is available upon request M-F 8AM-5PM at the Ada Township Clerk’s Office, excluding Holidays 

If you would like to be on the Ada Township e-mail information list please inform the Clerk or e-mail the Clerk at jsmith@adatownshipmi.com.  Persons with 
special needs, as defined in the Americans with Disabilities Act, should contact the Ada Township Clerk or call the Michigan Relay Center 

TDD # 1-800-649-3777. 
 

                                       TENTATIVE AGENDA   
                                        ADA TOWNSHIP REGULAR BOARD MEETING                          

                                         MONDAY, JANUARY 27, 2020 at 7:00 P.M. 
                                      ADA TOWNSHIP HALL 

                                     7330 THORNAPPLE RIVER DRIVE 
 

              
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 A.   PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 B.   MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 C.   NOTE BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT & ABSENT 

 
II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
 
III.          GENERAL TOWNSHIP BUSINESS  
 MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES & ACCEPT REPORTS / COMMUNICATIONS UNDER CONSENT 
 AGENDA  

A. APPROVAL OF BOARD MEETING MINUTES:  
 1.  TOWNSHIP BOARD MINUTES – JANUARY 13, 2020 

               B.    RECEIVE AND FILE VARIOUS REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS: 
                              1.  ADA HISTORICAL SOCIETY MINUTES – 12/12/19 
  2.  MUSEUM MANAGER – WORK REPORT – 12/2019 
  3.  ADA DDA MINUTES – 12/09/19 
  4.  COMCAST UPDATE – 01/09/20 
  5.  ADA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – 12/19/19 
  6.  UTILITY ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES – 12/19/19 
  7.  LIBRARY / COMMUNITY CENTER PROJECT STATUS REPORT – 01/13/20 
  8.  BUILDING REPORT SUMMARY – 01/16/20 
  9.  ASSESSING DEPARTMENT UPDATE – 01/17/20 
       
IV.          APPROVAL OF WARRANTS 
 A.   TOWNSHIP GENERAL WARRANTS  
 
 V. PUBLIC COMMENT   
 
VI. BOARD COMMENT  
 
VII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

A. ADA TOWNSHIP SPACE UTILIZATION STUDY  
B. ARTS AND CULTURAL CENTER 

1. UPDATE ON DESIGN, COST & FUNDING 
2. BOARD DIRECTION  
3. PROGRESSIVE AE AMENDMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES – ADVANCE PLANNING 

FOR ARTS CULTURAL CENTER  
4. APPROVAL OF DESIGN SERVICES FOR ARTS AND CULTURAL CENTER PROJECT  

C. RESOLUTION R-012720-1, GRAND RAPIDS TRIATHLON ROAD CLOSURE 
D. TOWNSHIP ROAD PROJECTS FOR 2020 
E. CORRECTED RESOLUTION R-011320-3, RESOLUTION TO SUPPORT THE AVGS, LLC FOR AN ON-

PREMISES REDEVELOPMENT LICQUOR LICENSE 
  
IX. OPPORTUNITY FOR ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
  
X.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

mailto:jsmith@adatownshipmi.com


Draft 

ADA TOWNSHIP BOARD MEETING 
MINUTES 

JANUARY 13, 2020 

Meeting was called to order by Supervisor Haga at 7 p.m..  Members present:  Supervisor Haga, Clerk Smith, Treasurer Moran, 
and Trustees Hurwitz and Proos.  Trustee Jacobs arrived at 7:02 p.m.  Members absent:  Trustee McAleenan.  Also Present:  
Planning Director Ferro, DDA Coordinator Hilbrands, Parks Director Fitzpatrick, Assessor Boerman, and approximately nine 
community members.   

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Added to the agenda under Reports/Communications:  Item 9.  Ada Township Parks and Recreation Park Directors Report - 1-
9-20.  Moved by Hurwitz, supported by Proos, to approve the Agenda as amended.  Motion carried.

CONSENT AGENDA 

Approval of Board Meeting Minutes 
Township Board Minutes - 12/9/19. 
Receive and File Various Reports/Communications 
1. Ada Township DDA Minutes - 11/04/19; 2. Ada Township Fire Department Activity Report - 11/2019; 3. Utility Advisory Board
Minutes - 11/14/2019; 4. Ada Township Planning Commission Minutes - 11/21/2019; 5. Ada Historical Minutes - 11/14/2019; 6.
Ada Township Social Media Recap - 01/02/2010; 7. Ada Township Treasurer’s Investment Report - 11/2019; 8. Ada Township
ZBA Minutes - 12/03/2019; 9. Ada Township Parks and Recreation Park Directors Report - 01/09/2020.  Moved by Proos,
supported by Hurwitz, to approve the Minutes and Reports/Communications on the Consent Agenda.  Motion carried.

APPROVAL OF WARRANTS 

ADA TOWNSHIP GENERAL WARRANTS 
Treasurer Moran presented the following Hand Checks: #101, $53,316.01; #205 $4,631.19; #211 $300.00; #214 $38,865.98; 
#248 $4,000.00; #401 $462,483.02; #590, $5,150.84; #591, $1,712.17; #592 $792.84. Total of all Hand Checks: $571,252.05.  
Warrants: #101, $120,848.46; #205, $30,986.11; #211 $2,936.29; #214 $75,903.03; #248 $1,130.00; #401 $30,030.40; #590 
$161,486.42; #591 $142,799.95; #592 $8,135.62. Total of all Warrants: $574,256.28. Total of all Checks and Warrants: 
$1,145,508.33.  Moved by Proos, supported by Hurwitz, to approve the Warrant Report for January 13, 2020, in the total 
amount of $1,145,508.33.  Roll Call:  Yes - Proos, Jacobs, Hurwitz, Moran, Smith, Haga; No - 0; Absent - McAleenan.  
Motion carried. 

PAY APPLICATION 18 - LEGACY PARK 
Pete Lazdins, Progressive AE, explained this project, stating it is nearly complete.  Moved by Jacobs, supported by Moran, 
to approve Pay Application 18 for Legacy Park, to Katerberg VerHage, in the amount of $39,948.03.  Roll Call:   Yes - 
Jacobs, Proos, Hurwitz, Moran, Smith, Haga; No - 0; Absent - McAleenan.  Motion carried. 

PAY APPLICATION 2 - LEGACY PARK, DEVOS MEMORIAL 
Pete Lazdins, Progressive AE, explained this project.  Moved by Proos, supported by Jacobs, to approve Pay Application 
2 for Legacy Park, DeVos Memorial, to Couturier Iron Craft, in the amount of $46,983.34.  Roll Call:   Yes - Proos, Hurwitz, 
Jacobs, Smith, Moran, Haga; No - 0; Absent - McAleenan.  Motion carried. 

PAY APPLICATION 7 - LIBRARY & COMMUNITY CENTER 
Nick Haglund, Erhardt Construction, explained this project.  Moved by Proos, supported by Moran, to approve Pay 
Application 7 for the Library/Community Center, to Erhardt Construction, in the amount of $321,857.60.  Roll Call:   Yes 
- Hurwitz, Jacobs, Proos, Moran, Smith, Haga; No - 0; Absent - McAleenan.  Motion carried.

PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment. 

III. A. 1



Ada Township Board Meeting 
Minutes of January 13, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 
 

BOARD COMMENT 
 
Trustee Hurwitz asked about the status of fundraising for the community room at the library.  Planning Director Ferro explained 
there is a small stakeholder group involved. 

Clerk Smith stated 2020 will be a big election year, with the March 10 Presidential Primary being first.  Township offices will be 
on the August primary and November general election.  Deadlines for filing are April 21, and candidate packets are available in 
the Clerk’s office. 

Trustee Proos expressed kudos to the Fire Department and all that they do.  He also commented on township office space and 
the library/performance center. 

Supervisor Haga announced that the old Kubota sold for over $9,000.  He also stated he would email pictures of the Christmas 
Day sanitary sewer leak. 
 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
There was no Unfinished Business. 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
RESOLUTION R-011320-1 - RESOLUTION TO ACQUIRE AND CONSTRUCT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS CONSISTING OF 
THE SANITARY SEWER MAIN AND WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS AND RELATED IMPROVEMENTS AND 
TO PUBLISH NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS AND MATTERS RELATED THERETO 
Steve Groenenboom, Moore & Bruggink, and Mark Nettleton, Mika Meyers, explained the process required.  Moved by Proos, 
supported by Moran, to adopt Resolution R-011320-1, which is a Resolution to Acquire and Construct Capital 
Improvements Consisting of the Sanitary Sewer Main and Water Main Improvement Projects and Related Improvements 
and to Publish Notice of Intent to Issue Capital Related Improvement Bonds and Matters Related Thereto,  Roll Call:  
Yes - Hurwitz, Jacobs, Proos, Smith, Moran, Haga.  Resolution adopted. 
 
RESOLUTION R-011320-02 - ADA TOWNSHIP WATER AND SANITARY SEWER RATE CHANGES 
Steve Groenenboom and Josh DeYoung, Moore & Bruggink, explained the rate structure.  Moved by Jacobs, supported by 
Proos to adopt Resolution R-011320-2, which is the Ada Township Water and Sanitary Sewer Rate Changes.  Roll Call:  
Yes- Jacobs, Hurwitz, Proos, Moran, Smith, Haga; No - 0; Absent - McAleenan.  Resolution adopted. 
 
ADATOWN WATER MAIN AND STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECT CONTRACT AWARD 
Steve Groenenboom, Moore & Bruggink, explained this project.  Moved by Proos, supported by Jacobs, to approve the 
Adatown Water Main and Street Improvement Project Contract Award with CL Trucking in the amount of $2,433,253.00, 
for water main replacement.  Roll Call:  Yes- Hurwitz, Proos, Jacobs, Smith, Moran, Haga; No - 0; Absent - McAleenan.  
Motion carried. 
 
RESOLUTION R-011320-3 - RESOLUTION TO SUPPORT THE AVGS, LLC APPLICATION FOR AN ON-PREMISES 
REDEVELOPMENT LIQUOR LICENSE 
DDA Coordinator Brian Hilbrands, explained this request.  Moved by Proos, supported by Jacobs, to approve Resolution 
R-011320-3, which is a Resolution to Support the AVGS, LLC Application for an On-Premises Redevelopment Liquor 
License.  Roll Call:  Yes - Proos, Jacobs, Hurwitz, Moran, Smith, Haga; No - 0; Absent - McAleenan.  Resolution adopted. 
 
RESOLUTION R-011320-4 - RESOLUTION TO ADOPT 2020 POVERTY EXEMPTION GUIDELINES 
Assessor Boerman explained the need for this resolution.  Moved by Proos, supported by Hurwitz, to adopt Resolution R-
011320-4, which is a Resolution to Adopt 2020 Poverty Exemption Guidelines.  Roll Call:  Yes - Jacobs, Hurwitz, Proos, 
Haga, Moran, Smith; No - 0; Absent - McAleenan.  Resolution adopted. 
 
RESOLUTION R-011320-5 - RESOLUTION TO DETERMINE THE TOWNSHIP BUDGET PREPARATION SCHEDULE FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2020/2021 
Supervisor Haga explained the budget preparation schedule.  Moved by Proos, supported by Moran, to adopt Resolution 
R-011320-5, which is a Resolution to Determine the Township Budget Preparation Schedule for Fiscal Year 2020/2021.  
Roll Call:  Yes - Jacobs, Proos, Hurwitz, Moran, Haga, Smith; No - 0; Absent - McAleenan.  Resolution adopted. 
 
RESOLUTION R-011320-5 - RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE ADA TOWNSHIP BUDGETS FOR FISCAL YEAR APRIL 1, 
2019 THROUGH MARCH 31,2020 
Supervisor Haga explained the need for this amendment.  Moved by Proos, supported by Jacobs, to adopt Resolution R-
011320-5, which is a Resolution to Amend the Ada Township Budgets for Fiscal Year April 1, 2019, through March 31, 
2020.  Roll Call: Yes - Proos, Hurwitz, Jacobs, Smith, Moran, Haga; No - 0; Absent - McAleenan.  Motion carried. 
 
 



Ada Township Board Meeting 
Minutes of January 13, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 
 
TOWNSHIP MANAGER HIRING PROJECT - RECOMMENDATION TO UTILIZE PROFESSIONAL SEARCH SERVICES 
Supervisor Haga explained the Personnel Committee had met and made this recommendation.  Moved by Jacobs, supported 
by Hurwitz, to approve hiring a firm to provide professional services to complete an executive search for the Township 
Manager.  Motion carried. 
 
 

OPPORTUNITY FOR ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no additional Public Comment. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:05 p.m. 
 
 
______________________________   ______________________ 
Jacqueline Smith         Date 
Ada Township Clerk 















DRAFT 
ADA TOWNSHIP DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 9, 2019 MEETING 

ADA, MICHIGAN 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

The meeting was called to order at 8:00 a.m. by Chairperson, Bowersox. 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  Terry Bowersox, George Haga, Bryan Harrison, Devin Norman, Ted 
Wright, Walt VanderWulp, Dawn Marie Coe, Margaret Idema 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: Justin Knapp  
STAFF PRESENT: Jim Ferro, Planning Director; Brian Hilbrands, DDA Coordinator; Adina 
Winczewski, Administrative Assistant; Kevin Moran, Treasurer   
PUBLIC PRESENT:  4 Community Members  

II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

It was moved by VanderWulp, seconded by Harrison, to approve the agenda as presented.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 4, 2019 MEETING

It was moved by Idema, seconded by VanderWulp, to approve the minutes of the November 4, 2019 
meeting as presented.  Motion passed unanimously. 

IV. APPROVAL OF PAYABLES
a. RRR Lawn and Landscape, Light Pole Garland Installation, $748.75
b. Seyferth PR October Invoice, Event Planning Services, $7,997.29
c. Twin lakes Nursery, Inc, Ada Drive Brick Repair, $2,946.89

Hilbrands briefly summarized the payables as presented in the board packets.  It was moved by Norman, 
seconded by Harrison, to approve the above payables.  Motion passed unanimously.  

V. RESOLUTION DDA-120919-1, REDEVELOPMENT LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION
FOR AVGS, LLC

Hilbrands presented, stating this is the first Class-C Redevelopment Liquor License Ada Township has 
seen. Owners of the Ada Village General Store would like to offer dessert-type alcoholic drinks.  
Hilbrands introduced Emily Cantor from Warner Norcross & Judd, LLP who was present on behalf of 
AVGS, LLC.   

Harrison asked how many of these Redevelopment Liquor Licenses are available in the Township.  
Hilbrands stated it requires redevelopment of $1 million per 1,000 people in the Township.  There has 
been more than $30 million in redevelopment and the Township has a population of around 13,000.  It is 
his understanding that there is room for 20-30 of these licenses.  That is in addition to the 6 quota liquor 
licenses for Ada which are full.  

Harrison asked what happens to the Redevelopment Liquor License if the applicant decides to no longer 
serve alcohol.  Hilbrands stated the license would revert back to the Michigan Liquor License 
Commission (MLLC).   

III. B. 3



Ada Township DDA Board 
Minutes of the December 9, 2019 Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

 
      
VanderWulp asked if the applicant is intending to serve or allow the liquor outside.  Ms. Cantor stated the 
applicant does intend to provide outdoor service.  They will need to make some changes by adding a 
barricade, per MLLC regulations.  Serving outside requires a permit through the MLLC and is separate 
from the Redevelopment Liquor License application.  Haga stated the Township is no longer involved in 
the outdoor service permit; it must go through the MLLC.         
 
Wright asked what the cost would be to bring liquor to the Ada Village General Store.  Ms. Cantor stated 
it will be a little over $20,000 because of permits that go with it. 
 
Wright expressed concerns that the General Store will morph into a place primarily for adult beverages 
instead of the kid-friendly ice cream shop.  Ms. Cantor stated Ice cream sales are slower in the winter and 
this will help smooth over the seasonal business.  The offerings will be more of a dessert variety for 
adults.  The owner does not intend to operate as a bar. 
 
Norman asked if this will change who can work for them.  Ms. Cantor stated underage employees (under 
21 yrs. old) will not be able to serve alcoholic beverages but they can continue to work there as long as 
someone of-age (21 or older) is also working.    

 
Haga moved, Harrison seconded, to adopt Resolution DDA-120919-1, for the Redevelopment Liquor 
License Application for AVGS, LLC. 
Roll Call:  Yes – Coe, Norman, Haga, Bowersox, Harrison, VanderWulp, Idema, Wright; No – 0; Absent 
- Knapp.  Resolution adopted.  

 
VI. REVIEW OF DRAFT DDA YEAR-END REPORT  

 
Hilbrands presented the first draft of the year-end report and requested feedback.  Idema stated she would 
like emails accessible to the community; if not in the year-end report, then somewhere else.  Hilbrands 
stated the DDA member’s names are already listed on the Township website.  If requested, he can add a 
link to their personal emails.  Hilbrands stated his contact information is currently on the website and will 
be in the year-end report. 
 
VanderWulp inquired about having a joint meeting with the Citizens’ Council.  He believes they should 
meet once or twice per year.  Harrison agreed, requesting Hilbrands to schedule a joint meeting for 
January or February. 
 
Wright suggested adding more photos of smiling faces in the year-end report.   
          
Haga commented on the businesses listed on the back page.  He feels since the Township serves all 
businesses; all businesses should be recognized.  Norman stated that highlighting new businesses since 
2012 is important, it shows that businesses want to come to Ada.  Wright suggested adding a link to the 
Ada Business Association.  Hilbrands brought up the idea of creating an Ada Business Directory because 
not all businesses are members of the Ada Business Association.  VanderWulp suggested including the 
home-based businesses.   
 
 
VII. REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS  

a. Status of Legacy Park Construction – Ferro stated it is almost complete.  Lettering on the 
pavilion, the removable backdrop, and landscaping are all that remains to be completed.  

 
Harrison inquired about extending the walkability down towards the Fulton bridge, through the property 
of 7590 Fulton St.  Ferro stated he has been in discussions with the developer about potential access 
easements or possibly conveying some land to the Township. 



Ada Township DDA Board 
Minutes of the December 9, 2019 Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

 
VanderWulp inquired about the development at 7590 Fulton St.  Ferro stated it is currently being 
proposed as 2, three-story buildings and 2, four-story buildings with a total of about 95 apartments.  The 
design has not yet been approved.  
 

b. Amy Van Andel Library and Community Center Update – Ferro stated the steel should 
be delivered and start to be erected this week.  There is some fundraising and initial design 
work going on for the optional addition on the west end of the building, proposed to be able 
to hold up to 150 people.  Bill Payne is spearheading the fundraising and has a goal to have 
the money raised by mid-January, 2020. 
 

Harrison stated he has a multipurpose room at the Caledonia library which gets a lot of use but needs a 
lot of flexibility.  Tables and chairs, sound equipment, etc. need to be stored somewhere when they’re 
not in use.  Harrison also stated that the proposed kitchen appears larger than necessary.  In his 
experience, most events will have food brought in/catered.  

   
c. Unfinished Business – None 

 
d. DDA Financial Report, 11/30/19 – Hilbrands stated there was little financial activity for 

November outside of the Farmers’ Market and Brats & Bonfires.   
 
Bowersox inquired about a Farmers’ Market that took place in late November.  Hilbrands stated there was 
a small holiday market that took place by several of the vendors but he hasn’t heard feedback.    
 

VIII. BOARD COMMENTS  
 

Haga invited the DDA to attend a meeting for the Leonard Field Park Master Plan on Saturday, January 
18, 2020, from 10 am – 12 pm.  With the ongoing success of Beers at the Bridge, the Township feels a 
Master Plan for Leonard Field Park is necessary.  
 
Harrison thanked fellow board members for volunteering to be a part of the DDA. 
 
Bowersox wished everyone a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year. 
  
 
Meeting was adjourned at 8:36 a.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Devin Norman, Secretary 
 
rs: aw 





ADA TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION  
 MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 19, 2019 MEETING 

A meeting of the Ada Township Planning Commission was held on Thursday, December 19, 2019, 7:00 
p.m. at the Ada Township Offices, 7330 Thornapple River Dr., Ada, MI.

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. ROLL CALL

Present: Burton, Butterfield (arrived 7:01 p.m.), Carter, Easter, Heglund, Jacobs, Leisman 
Absent: None 
Staff Present: Ferro, Bajdek, Winczewski 
Public Present:  Approximately 18 members  

III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Moved by Jacobs, supported by Carter, to approve the agenda as written.  Motion passed unanimously. 

Butterfield arrived 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 21, 2019 MEETING

Moved by Easter, supported by Carter, to approve the minutes of the November 21, 2019 meeting as 
presented.  Motion passed unanimously.  

V. PUBLIC HEARINGS

1. Request for Rezoning from the Medium Density Single-Family Residential (R-3) District to the
Village Residential (V-R) District, Parcel No. 41-15-34-402-008, 7699 Fase Street SE, Chuck
Hoyt, on behalf of TPR 7699 Fase Street, LLC

Chuck Hoyt of MENSA Capital presented on behalf of TPR 7699 Fase Street, LLC.  Mr. Hoyt stated this  
4-acre property was previously owned by the Kent County Road Commission.  It is surrounded by residential 
single-family homes.  The property currently has a building on it which was constructed around 1934 and  
has been used as a storage facility.   

Mr. Hoyt stated the property was made available to Ada Township for purchase in 2016.  Ada Township 
declined the offer and MENSA Capital purchased it in 2017.  Mr. Hoyt stated MENSA Capital has been  
allowing public parking on the property during community events. 

Mr. Hoyt stated the property was purchased with the intent to develop it into a residential neighborhood,  
compact in nature and walkable in its design.  The applicant would like to build a neighborhood consistent  
with the Ada Township Master Plan.  They are requesting a zoning change from R-3 to V-R because the lots 
in the R-3 district require a lot width of 90 feet with a 13,500 sq. ft. lot size.  That is larger than what is  
required of Ada Moorings.  Many of the existing lots on Fase St. are smaller than that dimension, therefore,  
they feel it is appropriate to ask for the V-R designation which requires 50 ft. lot widths and 7,000 sq. ft. lots. 
Mr. Hoyt stated he believes this site was not included in the V-R district because it was not in use as a  
residential site at the time the zoning designation was made.   

Mr. Hoyt stated their goal is to make it into 16 single-family homes with lot widths of 50 ft.  That would 
allow for affordable, walkable, and highly marketable residential units as encouraged in the Ada Village 

III. B. 5



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the December 19, 2019 Meeting 
Page 2 of 6 
 
Market Study.   
 
Mr. Hoyt addressed two objections mentioned in the November 18, 2019 staff memo prepared by Planning  
Director, Jim Ferro: 
 

1. A lack of existing storm drainage facilities.   
Mr. Hoyt presented a recent survey which shows a storm drain and catch basin at the corner of the 
emergency access drive and Fase St. 

2. The proximity of a lower density neighborhood immediately adjacent to the north and east. 
Mr. Hoyt reviewed an aerial photo noting the home closest to the north east corner of the subject property.  
Mr. Hoyt stated that they have every intent to do some landscape screening.  Mr. Hoyt stated the side 
yard setbacks for homes in Ada Moorings are roughly 18 ft. and they would be significantly farther away 
from what homes currently are from each other in Ada Moorings.  

         
Planning Director, Ferro, presented and reviewed a zoning map of the subject property and surrounding area.   
Ferro stated the R-3 zoning district requires a minimum lot size of 13,500 sq. ft. and a minimum lot width of  
90 ft. when the property is served by both public water and sewer.  R-3 zoning is typically found in the Ada  
Drive corridor which has public utilities.  It is more of a suburban zoning district which includes  
neighborhoods such as Ada Croft Commons, Ada Towne, and Ada Woods.  
 
Ferro stated that the V-R zoned properties on Fase St. allows for smaller lots.  When the V-R district was  
created years ago, it was created to better match the lot sizes and characteristics of properties in the village  
at that time.  Prior to the V-R designation, all residential neighborhoods in the Village were labeled in the R- 
3 zoning district.  V-R designation allows 7,000 sq. ft. lots with a minimum lot width of 50 feet.  Ferro stated  
he estimates that 16 homes could be built on the applicant’s 4-acre property.  If the applicant’s property  
stayed in the current R-3 zoning district, no more than 8 homes could be built on the 4-acre property.  
 
Ferro stated one of the criteria used in evaluating a re-zoning request is how it conforms with the Ada  
Township Master Plan.  In the case of the 2007 Ada Township Master Plan, amended in 2016, the subject  
property is shown as being used as a public/semi-public land use category.  That was based on the fact that  
the Road Commission owned the property and the Township was entertaining the idea of purchasing the  
property for some other public use.  Ferro stated the Future Land Use Map doesn’t address the change in  
ownership from public ownership to private ownership.    
 
Ferro stated there is a vision statement regarding residential land use in the Master Plan which states that  
“Ada Township will have a variety of housing styles and levels of affordability, to accommodate the needs  
of varying income, stages in life and housing preferences…”  There is also a supporting policy that states the  
Township should “encourage compact residential development in and near the Ada Village neighborhood…”   
Ferro stated that he feels these statements support the applicant’s zoning change request. 
 
Ferro stated a second criterion used in evaluating a re-zoning request is compatibility with surrounding uses.  
Ferro stated that although Ada Moorings is in the R-3 zoning district, due to judicial proceedings back in the  
1980’s, Ada Moorings was permitted to have lots smaller than the minimum R-3 standard of 13,500 sq. ft.  
 
Ferro stated the lot sizes to the east and north of the subject property range from about 7,700 sq. ft. on Fase  
St. and up to 15,333 sq. ft. in the Ada Moorings development.  There are existing lots on Moorings Drive to  
the north of the applicant’s property that are slightly over 12,000 sq. ft. in size.  



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the December 19, 2019 Meeting 
Page 3 of 6 
 
 
Ferro noted that there are powerlines along the east side of the applicant’s property which may put some  
constraints on how much landscape screening can be planted.        
 
Ferro stated a third criterion used in evaluating a re-zoning request is availability of public facilities to serve  
the proposed use.  Ferro stated there is both public water and sewer available to serve the subject property.   
There are also two means of access to Thornapple River Drive, one is from Fase St. and the other is from  
Kamp Twins Dr.  Ferro stated the development of this property, as the applicant proposes, would potentially  
add around 160 vehicle trips per day.  There are no traffic count studies for Fase St. but there are about 40  
existing homes on the street which, using generally accepted traffic generation rates, generate about 320  
vehicle trips per day.  Ferro stated that even with a possible addition of 20 homes on the applicant’s property,  
there would be daily traffic volumes below the acceptable limit.  
 
Ferro stated a fourth criterion used in evaluating a re-zoning request is site suitability for the proposed use.   
The site is nearly flat and has very little significant vegetation.  The site is well out of the 100-year floodplain  
and has no wetlands or other water/riparian features. 

Ferro stated a fifth criterion used in evaluating a re-zoning request is the current supply of land already 
zoned for the proposed use in the area.  The analysis of potential development in the VR district that was 
completed by the Planning Department in September, 2019 demonstrated that the acreage of land in the 
existing VR district boundary has potential for redevelopment that could result in a 47% increase in the 
number of home sites in the district (from 97 to 143 home sites), through division of existing parcels. 
However, there are currently very few existing vacant lots in the VR district that are available for 
development in the short term. 
 
Ferro stated the final criterion used in evaluating a re-zoning request is whether the property can be 
reasonably used under its current zoning.  Development of the subject property under the current R-3 
zoning district would permit reasonable use of the property.  Rezoning is not necessary in order to allow 
reasonable use of the site.  
 
Ferro concluded his review by stating that VR zoning of the subject property is compatible with the 
character of the area provided that it is developed in a way that is sensitive to what surrounds it.  In regards 
to storm drainage, the applicant addressed it in his recent survey and it appears it is available.   
 
Ferro noted that the applicant could also apply for an R-3 PUD zoning which would allow development 
with density that is higher than the R-3 district.  In doing so, the Township would have more discretion on 
the design and layout of the development that they wouldn’t have if it was simply zoned V-R.  Ferro stated 
the layout in comparison to surrounding homes is likely more important than density in this case.    
 
Chair Leisman opened the public hearing at 7:35 p.m. 
 
 Miles Fase of 7680 Fase St. stated he thinks the re-zoning is a terrible thing to happen.  Fase St. already    
 has traffic problems.  Fase St. does not need more vehicles or more buildings.  Mr. Fase stated he does   
 not care about a Master Plan.  He is concerned he would be charged for more water and sewage built for   
 the additional homes.  He thinks the whole thing is ridiculous and terrible. 



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the December 19, 2019 Meeting 
Page 4 of 6 
 
Mark LaCroix of 7551 Fase St. stated he has concerns about the density in regards to the road.  Fase St. 
has become a parking lot.  With more and more Township events, residents are parking on both sides of 
the street.  You can barely fit 2 cars on the road when there are cars parked on both sides.  Another concern 
is that Fase St. is a pedestrian thoroughfare.  Mr. LaCroix stated there is already many children, bicycles, 
wagons, etc. in the street and it has become dangerous.  He feels adding more traffic on Fase St. would be 
irresponsible.  Mr. LaCroix stated the intersection of Fase St. and Thornapple River Dr. is extremely 
dangerous.  He thinks that until the safety issues are addressed, there should not be more density on the 
end of Fase St.  
 
Broderick Bebout of 826 Moorings Dr. stated he agrees with Mr. LaCroix’s comments and asked several 
questions:  
1. Do any of the Trustees get a financial benefit for the completion of this project? 
2. Is there a site plan so the residents can see the layout for the 16 potential houses?  
3. Will there be any change to the emergency access road between Ada Moorings and Fase St.? 
4. Will there be any common element built into this project? 
5. Will the power lines be relocated? 

    
Tom Manus, owner of two rental homes on Fase St., stated he agrees with the public comments tonight.  The  
pedestrian flow does create a problem.  Mr. Manus inquired what the minimum square footage of the homes  
would be on these lots and expressed concerns over the possibility of very small homes being built thus  
causing property values to decline.  Mr. Manus stated the traffic is the main issue and he is totally against  
this. 
 
Arjia Wilcox of 842 Dogwood Meadows Dr. stated she once sold in Ada Moorings and she represents 
MENSA Capital in the Riverpoint development.  Ms. Wilcox stated she is speaking as a homeowner in Ada  
Moorings and prefers to look at homes vs. an eyesore.  She has lived in Ada Moorings for 16 years and has  
walked past the storage facility for 16 years.  She feels very strongly that the Township needs to make an  
improvement in the community.  This development will add to our local businesses and community  
enjoyment.  Ms. Wilcox stated she doesn’t feel an additional 16 homes will add much traffic and that  
neighborhoods and the Township can control traffic flow.  She feels her home will increase in value by  
having an improvement to an eyesore.  Ms. Wilcox stated it is easy to look at free land and want it to stay  
that way, but she does not feel that way.  She wants her home value to increase and her community to be  
whole.    
 
Jeremiah Gruchow who lives on Cascade Road stated he has a small development going on in Ada right  
now in a R-3 zoned district.  Mr. Gruchow stated his homes are at a higher price point because of how many  
homes they can put in an R-3 development.  Mr. Gruchow stated he gets calls 5-6 times per week from people  
wanting to know if they can provide homes at a smaller price point but he can not in the R-3 district because  
of how much money goes into development.  Mr. Gruchow stated he feels the applicant’s request would fit  
the need for the community and allow an opportunity for people to find a home that is a little more affordable.  
 
Delvin Ratzsch of 7653 Fase St. stated he has a running battle with the Kent County Road Commission in  
regards to the intersection of Fase St. and Thornapple River Dr.  Mr. Ratzsch stated that according to some  
studies, this intersection is one of the most dangerous types of pedestrian crossing situations.  If the proposal  
is to add up to an additional 20 houses, this intersection is going to be more dangerous.  He encouraged the  
Township to apply more pressure on the Kent County Road Commission to improve the safety on this  



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the December 19, 2019 Meeting 
Page 5 of 6 
 
intersection if this development does get approved. 
 
Noelle DiVozzo of 7115 Bronson St. stated the pedestrian and traffic issues do need to be addressed on Fase  
St. before any development takes place.  If development does take place, she would like to see affordable  
housing.                         
      
Betsy Ratzsch of 7653 Fase St. stated that she is worried about traffic and noted that there would also be an  
increase in garbage trucks, school busses, turn-around traffic, etc.  Ms. Ratzsch stated that she loves the idea  
of some small homes, preferring no more than 1,800 sq. ft.  She would also like to see more affordable  
homes.  The Master Plan has a vision to offer homes in a variety of price points and she does not feel that is  
true right now.   
 
Dawn Bebout of 826 Moorings Dr. stated the subject property is an eyesore as it sits now.  Nice homes would  
be an improvement but 16 homes seem too much.  Fase St. has too many cars and the pedestrian crossing  
is dangerous.  
 
Public Hearing closed at 7:57 p.m.  
 
Chair Leisman offered the applicant to speak on the concerns raised from the residents.  Mr. Hoyt declined. 
 
Ferro stated the emergency access gate is for Ada Moorings only.   
 
Ferro stated in regards to site layouts, nothing has been presented to the Township.  He also does not know  
if there will be a common area, but there is not a requirement to have one.  He has no knowledge of the  
minimum square footage of homes that the developer would propose.  Ferro stated the Commissioners can  
request to see plans if that would help conceptualize, but the Planning Commission can not approve or deny  
based on layout in the VR district.   
 
Ferro stated he is not aware of any plans to relocate the power lines.  Mr. Hoyt stated there are no plans to  
move the power lines.  
 
Jacobs stated the neighbor with the shortest setback will likely be concerned about the vegetation screening. 
 
Jacobs stated that any costs related to infrastructure / utility connections would be the developer’s  
responsibility. 
 
Jacobs stated there have been numerous conversations, meetings, and studies between the Township and the  
Kent Count Road Commission on the safety of the pedestrian crossing area at Fase St. and Thornapple River  
Dr.  It is a county road and the KCRC has essentially said they can not do anything to help.  Jacobs  
encouraged audience members to talk to the people who make decisions at the KCRC.   
 
Ferro stated the Township is currently in the process of updating the community trail and walkability plan.   
A lot of public input has been collected and this southeastern area is rated as one of the highest ranked needs  
for a potential project to improve better access into the Village.  
 
Leisman stated he agrees with the Planner’s recommendation to deny unless the applicant wants to table the  



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the December 19, 2019 Meeting 
Page 6 of 6 
 
application and show the Planning Commission some plans so they can conceptualize the changes.  Carter  
stated that if it is tabled, he will likely deny because even if the plans are acceptable by the Planning  
Commission and the area is rezoned to V-R, the applicant is not bound by those plans in the V-R district.       
 
Leisman stated a Site Plan Review is required for any developments over a certain number. 
Carter asked how many lots the applicant’s property could be split into as it is currently zoned.  Ferro stated  
8 lots.    
 
Leisman stated the Planning Commissioners’ options are: to recommend approval to the Township Board,  
recommend denial, or table the request to allow the applicant to bring more information or allow them to  
resubmit their re-zoning request as a PUD. 
 
Carter stated he favors the PUD option as it allows the Planning Commission to look at landscaping,  
screening, roads, sidewalks, etc.  
 
Leisman asked Mr. Hoyt what he would like to do.  Mr. Hoyt stated he would like to table the request and  
informed the Commissioner’s that it was not presented as a PUD because it can be a cumbersome process.   
He felt it was unnecessary.   He doesn’t feel the site will allow 20 units as a V-R zoning would allow, and  
feels they are capped out at 16 units.   
 
Mr. Hoyt stated that if they re-submit their application and request a PUD, they would be allowed up to 24  
units and they would likely apply for that many.  Easter noted that Mr. Hoyt just stated he felt the property  
was capped out at 16 units.  
 
Mr. Hoyt commented that Riverpoint of Ada, single family homes, has lots that are 50 ft. wide.  He  
recommended looking at those lots to get a feel for the size.  
 
Burton asked about pricing.  Mr. Hoyt stated the homes will be market driven.  
 
Leisman stated if a PUD application is presented, there will be a new Public Hearing.  
 
It was moved by Jacobs, supported by Carter, to table the request for 1 month.  Motion passed unanimously.         

 
VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
 
VII. NEW BUSINESS - None 
 
VIII. COMMISSION MEMBER/STAFF REPORTS - None 
 
IX. PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
X. ADJOURNMENT – Meeting adjourned at 8:25 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
___________________________________________________ 
Jacqueline Smith, Ada Township Clerk   rs: aw 



  
ADA TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION  

 MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 19, 2019 WORK SESSION 
 

A work session meeting of the Ada Township Planning Commission was held on Thursday, December 
19, 2019, at 4:00 p.m. at the Ada Township Offices, 7330 Thornapple River Dr., Ada, MI. 
 
 
I. Call to Order / Roll Call  
  
Present: Burton, Easter, Carter, Heglund, Jacobs, Leisman  
Absent: Butterfield  
Staff Present: Ferro, Bajdek 
Public Present:  5 Members  
 
 
II. Informal Pre-Application Conference, 96 Multifamily Residential Units On 9.64 Acre Site,  
 7590 East Fulton St., Parcel No. 41-15-34-127-003, Orion Real Estate Solutions    
 
Mr. Tom Tooley of Ghafari Architecture apologized for Mike Lubbers’ absence and presented on his 
behalf.  Mr. Tooley stated his team took the feedback from previous meetings and incorporated them into 
the new plans.   
 
Mr. Tooley stated a manager’s office building has been added in front near the detached garages.  They 
have also eliminated 2 units on one end of each of the 4-story buildings to give them a stepped 
architecture.  This change results in a decrease in the total number of units from 96 to 92.  Mr. Tooley 
stated additional windows and detailing have also been added to the elevator areas in the 3-story 
buildings.  Mr. Tooley reviewed the renderings with the Commissioners.  
 
Mike Maier of Wheeler Development Group (formerly Orion Real Estate Solutions) stated he is hoping 
that input from today’s meeting can help finalize thoughts and get them ready for a formal application 
submittal in January.  
 
Planning Director, Ferro, asked if the ground floor units in the 3-story buildings have doorways out to the 
courtyard.  Mr. Tooley stated yes.  
 
Mr. Maier stated they are offering a pathway along the eastside of the apartments to the Township to 
connect to the trail system.   
 
Ferro asked if they would be willing to do a property line adjustment so the Township can have 
ownership of the entire pond which is currently split between them and the Township.  Mr. Maier stated 
that would be possible.  
 
Ferro inquired if building setbacks from Fulton Street were changed from the previous submittal.  Mr. 
Tooley stated they increased the setbacks a little bit since the last iteration.   
     
Jacobs noted that the Ada Township Fire Department does not have the capacity to reach a 4-story 
building.  She would like to see liability insurance and recommended speaking to the Township attorney.  
Mr. Tooley stated there will be sprinkler systems installed. 
 
Burton stated she does like the brick façade.  Carter stated he thinks it fits well with the architecture of 
downtown Ada.   
 
Carter stated he would like to see something different on the rear of the garages so people aren’t looking 
at a solid wall of brick.  Mr. Tooley stated they intend to carry some detailing from the front of the 
garages to the back.  Mr. Maier stated landscaping will also be a part of the rear of the garages.   



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the December 19, 2019 Work Session 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
Burton inquired about garage spaces.  Mr. Tooley stated there will be 42 spaces under the buildings, 40 
detached garages and 81 open spaces.  There will not be designated guest parking.     
 
Leisman stated he feels the architecture is much improved.  He likes the brick and how it matches the rest 
of the Village.  He likes the step architecture of the 4-story buildings and wonders if they could do the 
same with the 3-story buildings.   
 
Leisman stated his only hesitation is that this does not fit with the Envision Ada Master Plan.   
 
Easter stated Ada Township does not have any residential rental units like this in the Village.  This is a 
classy way of providing rental space and it encourages some diversity in the Village.  
 
Jacobs stated that she really likes the architecture of the buildings but she agrees with Leisman; this plan 
deviates from the Envision Ada Master Plan.   
 
Ferro stated the Envision Ada plan had a graphic concept layout for this property but it was not intended 
to be prescriptive.  If this project were proposed under the PVM district regulations, the PVM regulations 
for this property allows all types of housing from apartment buildings to single-family homes.   
 
John Wheeler, Wheeler Development Group, stated that since the last work session meeting, he consulted 
with Pete Lazdins, Urban Land Planner from Progressive AE.  Mr. Lazdins was the author and guiding 
architect on the Envision Ada Master Plan.  Mr. Wheeler stated that Mr. Lazdins felt this project fit in 
beautifully with the Envision Ada Master Plan.   
 
Leisman suggested the Planning Department retain an external source of expertise to take an independent 
look at these drawings and get their opinion if this fits with the Envision Ada Master Plan.   
 
Carter suggested adding the barn door motif to the back of the parking garages so they look similar to the 
Ada Fresh Market building.   
 
Easter stated the rendering looking east makes the 3-story buildings look like institutional like dorms. 
 
Leisman asked Ferro how close would this be if done under the form-based code with some departures.  
Ferro stated he will need to research that option.    
 
Carter asked if they still think they will be charging rent in the $1,200 - $1,600 range.  Mr. Maier stated 
yes.  
 
Burton inquired about the insulation, concerned that neighbors will be hearing each other.  Mr. Tooley 
stated they will be exceeding the required codes.  Wheeler stated their design includes specific features to 
address sound barriers between units.  
 
Leisman stated the narrative that comes with the application will be a part of the Public Hearing.  It would 
be helpful if it explained how this project is consistent with the development in Ada. 
 
III. Public Comment  
 
Noelle DiVozzo, 7115 Bronson St., stated she thinks this design is better than what was submitted 
previously.  She agrees with Easter’s comment about the east rendering looking like dorm rooms.  Ms. 
DiVozzo stated she thinks there will be a lot of public pushback about high-density apartments here.  
There is already traffic issues and she doesn’t think Ada needs any higher density than what was already 
planned for in the Envision Ada Master Plan.  Apartments are never a neighborhood.  They tend to be 



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the December 19, 2019 Work Session 
Page 3 of 3 
 
much more transient communities.  Ms. DiVozzo stated Ada could still make that higher density with 
smaller houses.  It would be wonderful to get something that is senior citizen-friendly.   
 
 
 
IX. Adjournment – Meeting adjourned at 4:53 p.m.  
 
 
 

 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
___________________________________________________ 
Jacqueline Smith, Ada Township Clerk 
 
rs: aw 





















MEMORANDUM

Date: 1/16/2020 

TO: George Haga, Township Supervisor 
FROM: Jim Ferro, Planning Director 
RE: Building Permit Summary for 2018 and 2019 

Attached are summary building permit data tables for calendar years 2018 and 2019, from Cascade Twp. 
Building Dept. The following table and comments summarize and compare data from the two years: 

● Construction activity in Ada Township in 2019 decreased from 2018 levels, measured by both
number of permits issued and declared value of construction.

● New detached single-family home starts were slightly below 2018 levels, with a modest decline
in average value per dwelling unit.

● The number of attached housing units issued permits in 2019 declined greatly from 2018. This is
largely due to the influence on the 2018 data of the permitting for all 72 units in The Knoll
townhome development on Spaulding Avenue, as well as 13 townhome units in the Riverpoint of
Ada development.

● The value of commercial and industrial construction increased by 18.1% from last year.

● The number of permits issued for residential additions/alterations/repairs increased slightly from
last year, while the declared value of this construction category decreased by 24%. This category
includes a variety of projects, including swimming pools, garages, residential additions and
remodeling and roofing/siding projects.

Note:   Cascade Township Building Dept. classifies both detached homes and attached condominiums as “single family homes.” 
The above table divides them into separate categories. 

2018 2019 %  Change

Total Permits Issued: 423 349 -17.5%
Total Construction Value ($ Million): $80.92 $60.62 -25.1%
New Single Family Dwelling Units: 37 36 -2.7%
Total New SF Dwelling Unit Value ($ Million): $27.83 $25.07 -9.9%
Ave. Value per New SF Unit $752,237 $696,458 -7.4%
New Attached Dwelling Units 89 4 -95.5%
Total Attached Dwelling Unit Value ($ Million):

$18.72 $1.15 -93.9%
Commercial/Industrial Value ($ Million): $20.00 $23.62 18.1%
Mixed Use ($ Million) $0.00 $0.00 ---
Residential Add./Alter./Repairs:
  Value ($ Million): $14.09 $10.68 -24.2%
  # Permits: 215 228 6.0%

III. B. 8



ADA TWP CATEGORY REPORT YTD01/03/2020

Permit FeeEstimated Cost Number of PermitsCategory

$27,622.00$7,062,846Commercial, Add/Alter/Repair 37

$25,545.00$16,416,687Commercial, New Building 8

$3,500.00$238,756Deck 24

$550.00$104,300Demolish 11

$5,260.00$2,092,431Detached Accessory Building 24

$14,500.00$5,966,990Res. Add/Alter/Repair 82

$36,401.00$26,217,679Res. Single Family 40

$6,898.00$1,621,241Roofing/Siding 82

$1,250.00$142,568Sign 25

$2,290.00$758,836Swimming Pool 16

1Page:

Totals 349$60,622,334 $123,816.00

Permit.PermitNumber  Starts With  PB192 AND
Permit.DateIssued  Between  1/1/2019 12:00:00 AM
AND 12/31/2019 12:00:00 AM

2019


























































































	7330 THORNAPPLE RIVER DRIVE
	Agenda 01-27-20.pdf
	7330 THORNAPPLE RIVER DRIVE

	FOR PACKET - Permit Summary Report to Board - 01-16-20.pdf
	MEMORANDUM




